United Nations

GENERAL { 'E SECOND CO!GAITTEE
. N v 55th meeting
ASSEMBLY l-—y—té’ held on

W d Deceriber 19
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION receniars 1 a:cig.gg i!v:T

Official Records* New York

SUIARY RECORD OF THE 55th FEETING
Chairman: Ir. JAIZOWITSCE (Austria)

CONTENTS
AGENDA ITEM 6l: OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES FOR DFEVELOPLERT (continued)
(f) UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND (continued)
(n) UNITED NATIONS SPECIAL FUND FOR LAND-LOCKED DEVELOPING COUNTRIES (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 70: ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRIES: REPORTS OF THE
SECRETARY-CENERAL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM T2: TECHNICAL, CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRIES: UNITED NATIONS
CONFERENCE ON TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRILS (continue_(_i_)

AGENDA ITEM €2: UNTITED NATIONS ENVIRONMENT PROGRAMME (continued):
(a) REPORT OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL (continued)

(¢) UNITED RATIONS CONFERENCE ON DESERTIFICATION (continued)

* This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of Distr. GENERAL
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, . / c.o / 5/eR
Official Records Editing Section, room A -850, . 3 / SR.55

9 December 1977
Corrections will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for
each Committee.

ORIGIWAL: ENGLISH

T1-50687 Fie



02 32 55055

ish

The meetinr wus colled to order ot 11.05 a.v.

et . T .ot et

AGTATDA TTTI G1:  OPTRATIONAL ACTIVIVILS FCR DEVILO™ 7T (continued)
() UTITID (2TI0NS CHILDRWT'E TUUD (contlnued)

(h) UUITED YATICHS SPECIAL FUSD FOR LAD-LOCKED DIVETOPIVG COUNTRITS
(contirued)

Draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.66/Rev.l

‘ Senerel and Yunigie vere also cnomsoring it. Parsgrenh 1 had been revised
in the licht of corments fron e

Q
|_.«

if he heard no objections, he vould tale it that the
resolution vithent a vote

i

4o

It vas so deciced.

1

. ;g;mgggggv(Israel) sald that the survey mprovosed in the draft resolution ight
turn out to bhe o mrocedure to polltlclze a purely humanitarian issue. Guestions
relaulni to refuress shovld be referred to U'RVN, vhich was the body established
by the Gerersl Assembly to deal with such imatters. Constructive co-oreration
between ho t countries could best be achieved throush the participetion of Jordan
and soae of the other svonsors in the dislonue vhich had started in the region in
recent weeks rather than bir continuinge to ranipulate the refugee problem for
political vurvoses. His delecsation had nevertleless particinated in the consensus
since its achieverents in the provision of health services for refupcece children
vere a matter of record.

8. v, TUKAT {Jordan) said that his delegetion consicdered the resolution a
nurely humonitarian one and did not wish to politicize any issue. Thile his
delepation appreciated the efforts made by UITMMA, it felt thet there were some
health danrers for children of Palestine refugees. It was Tor that reason thet
the draft resolution had been submitted in the Second Cormittee,

Draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.T0/Rev.l

Ir. SIDDIO (Afshanistan), introducing the revised draft resolution
¢.2/32/1.70/Rev.1), announced that Laos and Lesotho had become sponsors. Ie
said that the word "voluntary'’ should be added after "penerous” in paragroph 1.
8. Cwing to the resrettable failure by the developed and other potential donor
countries to respond constructively at the recent pledging conference, the Special
und for Land-lociied Developins Countries could not become overational as vet.

/
/v e



r/C.2/32/81.55
Tni-lish
Page 3

(i7r. 8iddig, Afrhanisten)

In wviewr of that foet, the snonsors were urwince developed countries and other
potential donors to contribute to the Tund, The purpose of the draft resolution
was ccecordingly., to have the Administrator of U'MP, tocether irith the Secretory-
General of WICTAD, nropose interinm arrantgements to imnlement the Tundfs ains and
nurposes, which could be surmarized as compensatine land--locked countries for
their zdditional transport and transit costs. The arrangements vrould, of course,
be subject to approval by the UI'DP Governing Council,
S, He expressed the home that the draft resolution could be anproved vvithout a
vote.

10. r. LOOUET (Belriur) sugpested that the draft resolution should be put to the
vote.

11, ‘r. YTFBRA (%D in) wointed out that the third preambular parasranh and

jakal qﬁraph 1 referred specifically to develoned countries, vhereas the wording used
in Ceneral Assembly resolution 31/177, on the Statute of the Special Fund, referred
to '"all international orranizations and financial institutions, as well as
potential donor countries ...". Tt seemed in fact, that the Fund had not become
operational because of the failure cif all three catepgories of donor to resnond to
the apwmeal for funds. The svonsors minght therefore wish to revise paragravhs in
guestion in order to raliie then consistent with pearasraph h of resolution 31/177.

12, . ATIRDIVALT (Iran) said that the draft resolution posed very serious
problems for his delesstion and requested that the Cormittee's decision on it
should be deferred.

13. I'r. SIDDICQ (Afchanistan) supported that recuest: the sponsors ncecded time to
consider the su)ﬂestion of the Spanish representative.

ACGTY DA ITH . 70: IBCOIOIIC CO-OPTRATION AMONG DIVELOPIWG COUMITRIES: REPORTS OF THE
AWCRETARY - LDNE“AL (continued)

Draft resolution A/C.2/32/T..64/Rev.1

24 B

L, The CHAINIATT drer attention to the statement of the financial implications of
draft resolution (A/32/312/Add.1).

15. The meeting vas suspended at 11.25 a.m. and resured at 11.45 a.m.

16. i, HALL (Jameica), introducing the revised draft resolution
(A/C.2/32/L.64/Rev.1), drcw attention to the chances in paragraphs 2 and 5 of the
documents, the references to the Administrative Committee on Co-ordination and to
the decisions based on the Programme of Action adopted at the Third Ministerial
ieeting of the Group of TT had been revised. Ie expressed the hope that the draft
resolution could be adopted by consensus.

/...



7. The CHATRMAY said that, if he heard nc objections, he would tak

it that
the Committee decided to approve draft resclution A C;Q/EJ/Lao¢fhcv.1 without
a vote,

(D

GO

8. Tt was so decided.

i%. Mr. LOQUET (Belgium), speaking on behalf of the mewber States of the
ropean Leconcmic Community, reiiferated the support of those countries for

the concept of economic co-operation among develoning countries and hence for

draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.Gh/Rev.l. Referring to paragraph 4 of the draft

regolution, he stressed the need for full co-oneration among all Member States

of the United Hations in any discussions held on the subject in pursuance of

that paragraph.

20. #s. LADD (United States of America) reiterated the reservations expressed
by her delegation at the thirty~first session of the Ceneral Assembly with
regard to the subject-matter of paragrarh bt. THer delegation interpreted the
words “in accordance with their established procedures and wractices” to mean
thet the support mEASUres irn guestion would te the provision of meeting-rooms
and interpretation services at United Tations Headguarters for the United Wation
body concerned and for all United Haticns Hembers of that bedy.

R

21, i, ZACHMANN (German Democratic Republic), srteaking on behalf of the
delegations of Bulgaria ., the Byeloruszian Soviet Sceialist Renublic,
Czechoslovakia, lungary, Mongolia, Poland, the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist
Republic, the Union cf Soviet Socialist Republics and his own delegation

said that the cecialist countries had always supported the efforts of developing
countries to strengthen and defend their political and economic independence
and to raise their cultural. socisl and economic levels. They were prepared
to assist such countries on the bezsis of mutual co-operation in frade and

other areas. Moreover, they had an understanding of scme relsted concepts deslt
with in other resolutlons on economic co-operation among developing countries,
in particular the concepts of interdependence and the responsibility of the
develcped countrisg for the economic development of developing countries, on
wvhich they had already stated their nosition.

22, The socialist countries hoped that increassd co-ordination of United Fations
activities in the area of economic co-operation among developing countries
would be achieved by finding the most effezctive ways of organizing activities
in that area, rather than by using funds from the regular bHudget or increasing
the number of Secretarial cests. That end could te achieved by better
co-ordinsting activities within the Secretariet, within the United Taticons
system as a whole and with organizations representing the developing countries.
If such steps were taken, Secretariat activities in pursuance of “he draft

olution could be made effective without incurring excessive budget expenditures.

5. ur. BROWY (Australiz) said that hi:
at the thirty-first session concerning

reservabticns
rasraph 4, and




.LL/CoL/3O/SJ.Ln
Inglish
Page 5

(Mr. Brown, Australia)

expressed the hope that the executive heads of the specialized agencies would
exercise restraint in implementing that paragraph.

ek lr. DELIVANIS (Greece) said that his delegation had joined in the consensus
on draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.64/Rev.1 in the belief that world development
would be greatly enhanced by economic co-operation among developing countries.

AGENDA ITEM 72: TECHIICAL CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUWNTRIES: UNITED
MATIONS CONFERENCE Ol TECHNICAL CO-OPERATION AMONG DEVELOPING COUNTRIES (ggptinugi)

Draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.63/Rev.1l

©5. ir. HALL (Jamaica), introducing the revised draft resolution

{n/C.2/32/L.63/Rev.1l), drew attention to paragraph 1, which had been revised

to show that the recommendation of the Working Group on Technical Co-operation

among Developing Countries had been modified. Paragraphs 2, 4 and 6 had had

tc be revised accordingly. He drew attention to the new phrase at the end of
ragraph !t and to the content of paragraph 5.

20, Ur. TARLAI (Turkey) said that his delegation wish=d to be a sponsor of the
rev1ged draft resolutlop°

J7. The CHAIRMAN said that, if he heard no objection, he would take it that
the Committee approved the draft resolution without a vote.

»i, It was so decided.

c. Mr, GZVALD (Sweden), speaking on behalf of the lordic delegations, said
that those Qelegations had from the cutset fully supported the concept of
technical co—operation among developing countries as a majoer complement to
traditional Morth-South technical co~on ton and believed that a vigorous
determined pursuit of sclf-reliance by such means would be an imvortant

wten towards the achievement of & new Jntfrna+ional =conomic order. They also
vie d technlcal co-operstion among develoring countries as an important vehicle
or offectively wtilizing the unigque de 3L nment experience of third world
couwitries and of creating nev knowledge and inow-how of relevance for those
count cies. AU the samwe time. however, the iordic countries shared to some
extert the apprehensions exwnressed during the second session of the Preparatory
Committee about the size and complexity of the nroblems that had gradually
emerged in the debates on the subject. levertheless, they were looking forward
to the Conferenc

1. The Nordic countries hoped that in the premaratory work of the United lMNations
the fundamental conceptual problem of the exact role of developed countries in

the new form of tecinical co-operation could be solved. In that respect, the

role of ‘silent pmartners’ wvhose cnly contribution would be in the form of funds
Was insufficientg even the idea of “untying' aid so as to permit a much wider

/...



A/C.2/32/8R.55
Inglish
Page 6

(Mr. Osvald, Sweden)

selection of development inputs, which had in fact been ypractised in the Nordic
countries’ development co~cperation for some time, was not sufficient in itself
to define the role of developed countries. It was also doubtful whether their
own experience in co-operation could adequately Jjustify their participation.

In one respect, however, their role was clear: in all decisions affecting
policies and procedures of the United Fations system, the news of all Members
of the Organization had to be taken into acccunt. The problem affected them
as individual members of the world community, and it was as such that their
roles were not satisfactorily defined. The Nordic delegations therefore hoped
that that problem could be settled at the third session of the Preparatory
Committee.

3. WMr. CHAO Kung-ta (China) said that his delegation supported draft resclution
A/C.2/32/L.63/Rev.l. Reference was made in paragraphs 1, 2 and 6 to the report
of the Vorking Group on Technical Co-operation among Developing Countries

which, taken as a whole, reflected certain just pronposals and reasonable

demands of the develoving countries. FHowever, paragraph 40 of that revort
seprodiced the clichés regularly trumpeted by one super-Powsr to ihe effect

that resources released by disarmament shouid be used for development. That
super-Power paid lip-service every year to disarmament, yet it was consistently
engaging in unbridled arms expansion. As everyone knew, China had always been
opposed to that type of deceptive propaganda.

32. Mr., YEVDOKEYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the Soviet
Union attached great importance to technical co-operation among developing
countries in the context of the development programmes of the United Wations

and of the specialized agencies. Its princivled attitude to the expansion

and intensification of that co-operation determined its unchanging and consistent
support for the efforts of developing countries to defend their political and
economic independence, to restructure international economic relations on just
and denmocratic foundations, and to strengther their national economies on the
basis of independent development.

3%, The Soviet Union attached great importance to the sovereign right of
Governments of developing countries to decide for themselves on the type of
technical co--operation best suited to them. That co-~operation should also be
linked with national develcpment plans. Techrical co-operation among developing
countries should be broad and comprehensive ard should not be limited to one
group of countries; countries with different social and economic systems should
take part in it. The Soviet Union had reaffirmed its position on technical
co~operation at the twenty-third and twenty-fourth sessions of the Governing
Council of UNDP. Hevertheless, it believed that the recruitment of experts

and consultants, the placing of fellows, the award of subcontracts and the
purchase of equirment should be carried out on the basis of the principle of
equitable geographical distribution, taking into account the experience of all
countries, regardless of their social systems. It reaffirmed its view that the



L/C.2/32/8R.55
Inglish
Page 7

(I'r. Yevdokeyev, USSR)

Gissemination of information on technical co-operation among developing
countries should be carried out by the United Jations Secretariat, which had
information services eguipped to do that work.

34.  Although the draft resolution had not been available in Ruggian, the
Soviet Union, in order to save time, had not opposed the taking of & decision
on it. However, it did not want its co-operation in that instance to set a
precedent.

5. i, XIFR&_(Spain} thanked the sponsors for taking into account the vievs
his delegation had expressed and so enabling it to join in the consensug on

the draft resoclution. It oelieved that the approval of the draft resoluticn
represented a positive step towards the objectives which were sought by all,
namely, the full and equitable utilization of the potential of all participants
in the international development process.

“6. lr. QUINTIN (Ttaly) said that his country had always been in favour of
technical co-opcration among developing countries, as 2 new dimension of
vertical trade co-operation and one which enabled the experience of developed
countries to be sought and utilized by developing countries.

AGEWDA TTEM 62: UNITED NATIONS ENVIRCIMENT PROGRAMME (continued):

(2) REPCRT OF THE GOVERHIIG COUNCIL (continued)

(¢) UNITED NATIOHS CONFERENCE ON DESERTIFICATION {continued)

Draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.l

37. Hs. OLDFELT (Sweden) introduced draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.1 on
behalf of the sponsors, and announced that Bangladesh, Denmark and Finland
had joined the list of sponsors.

38. Draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.l was approved without a vote.

39, lir. DONNELLY (United Kingdom) said that his delegation had been glad to
join in the consensus on draft resolution A/C.2/32/1.19/Rev.1l and thanked

the sponsors for taking into account several of its suggestions. With regard
to maragraph 5, however, his delegation had already stated that it would
co-operate bilaterally with any country with respect to material remnants

of wars put that it did not consider it appropriate for UNEF to become involved
in the question. MHis Government would therefore decline the invitation in
paragraph 5.

3

40, Mr. SETIFMAN (United States of America) said that his Government considered
that the subject of paragraph 5 was not appropriate for consideration by UNEP.

. Mr. NELLI FERCCTI (Ttaly) said that the position of his delegation on the

[

.LL

[a




AJC.2/32/8R.55
English
Page O

(ifr. ¥elli Feroci, Italy)

guestion of material remnants of war: had been expressed on a number of occazions.
Tt considered that internationci co-operation with respect to the material
remnants of wars, particulsrly mines, should be based essentially on bilateral
relations between the ccuntries concerned. That was in accordance with the
recommendation of the Secretary-General in his report (A/32/137) that all States
which were responsible for the presence of remnants of wars on the territory of
other States should provide the latter, through convenient arrangements, with
all irformatzon which could be useful in the rehabilitation of the environment.

i Ttaly strongly preferred to deal with the matter on a bilateral basis,
it had in February 1977 sert the Executive Director of UNEP an exhaustive report
or. the subjcct prepared by the Ttalian Chief of Staff of the Army.

42. 1ith regard to paragraph 1, on the report of the Governing Council of UNTFR,
his delegation hoped that the establishment of a programme activity centre for
rezional seas, menticned in varagraph 207 of that repert, would not mean that the
UVEP office in Geneva woulc be closed down, as it was carrying out an important
function in assisting in the substantive work of intergovernmental bodies
concerned with environmentzl metters affecting the Mediterranean.

43, 1r. VALLE (Brazil) said that, with regard to paragraph 7 of draft
resolution A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.1l, his delegation reaffirmed its position that
questions relating to the utilizetion of shared natural resources were too
complex to be dealt with within the framework of UNEP. The legal implications
of the subject should be referred to the International Law Commission. Since

it had been decided to reconvene the Intergovernmental Tlorking Group of Experts,
his delegation believed that that group should concentrate on purely
environmental aspects and that its conclusions should not be binding.

L, s, COURSQ@_(France) sald that her Government favoured a bilateral approach to
the problem of material remnants of war. It therefore could not associate itself
with paragraph 5.

45. Mr. CHAO Kung-ta (China) said that his delepgation suppcrted draft resolution

A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.1l. lievertheless, it felt bound to point out that China had not

participated in the vote on decision 101 (V) ab the fifth session of the Governine
Council. China's position on that decision remained unchanged.

L6, Mr. LOQUET (Belgium) said that, for the ressons that had been expressed by
other delegations, Belgium had reservations about paragraph 5.

L7. lir. RUCKTESCHELL (Federal Republic of Germany) said that his delesation had
joined in the consensus on draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.19/Rev.l because of its
favourable attitude towards UNTLP. 'ith respect to paragraph 5, it endorsed the
statements made by the United Kingdom, tne United States, Italy, France and
Belgium, His Government was prevented by the agreement on the external debts of
the Federal Republic of Germany signed on 27 February 1953 in London, from
agreeing to any obligaticns on claims resulting from World War II outside a
general regulation. Furthermore, it helieved that UILP was not the competent body
to deal with such complex legal nroblems. Ilis Government had repecatedly declared
its willinsness to engase in Tllatersl discussicons, vhere appropriate. It could
not participate in any co-operaticn within the framework of UNEP as envisaged in
paragraph 5.

’

/



Lo
Gy

n Arab Jamehiriva) cbserved that, in ihe couwvse of &
. led to the revision of draft resclutlon AC.2/32/L.19 . so
gl elerotlous had oblected to tue worulpf &P the final vhrase of

5. which, in the originel wversion, had read "urges Governments to
co-overate with uhu Txecutive Director of the Programme in the implementatiorn of the
decision’ (decieion 101 (V)). In the view of nis delegation, the fact that
delegations had sought to amend or delete or had expresszed reservations sbout that
Phrase did not elter the fact that the meterizal remmants of war, particularly wmines,
had an adverse effect on the euvironment and that the problem called for the
co-operation of all mewbers of the international community, in particular those
countries which for historical reasons were best able to contribute to its
solution.

49, lds dele ration did not wish to place the countries concerned in an awkward
situation; instead, it appealed to them to help to solve a problem vhich was
contlaalnb to cause serlous human end material damage. In the preamble to the
Cherter of the United Wations, leuber States had pledrged to save succeeding
szuerations from the scourge of war: accordingly, COmoperation to remove the
material remmants of war, particularly mines, ha ﬁ o be regarded as an international
oricrity. IHis del *"”tlon was not attribvuting a bal responsibility to certain

wut it d1d velieve that 21l countries had a woral cobligetion to heln to

a protlen which caused both human suffering :nd environuental dana

Hr. mIOJG~(u0L1a*¢ st Republic of Viet Fam) expressed reservations on the
final phrase Qi paragraph 5. In his view, any country which was responsible Tor
waging o var of aggression against another country should be held completely
responsible for removing all material remnants of that war Uthﬂ continued to cause
human and material damage.

Al
¥

51. ir. VAJ BUUREN (Lietherlands) said that, although his delegation had JOlne@ iM
the consensus on draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.10/Rev.l, it shared the view expre
by a number of delegations, namely, thet the United Jaf€ons Envircnment Programm
should not incresse its invelvement in the matters referred to in paragraph 5.
oblem was best handled through direct contscts between the Governments concernad

SHle

resolution A/C.2/32/L.37/Rev. .1

5

7Q (Afghanistan),
sponsors, explial
to land-iocked
'xfiaﬁg in order to maks 1t congistent
ns Conlerence on Desertificeticn and
aft resolution was, in Tact, a $omlo¢~up
dations Uonference on Dezsertilication, ¢
General Assembly should reguest the Secrebary neral to renort on Lhe
tation of that resclution at the thirty.third sion of the Gener=l

lie hoped that the Comuittee would approve the draft resolution by

resolubion A/C.2/32/L.37/Rev.]l on
inforwel consultations, all
removed from the drait
ivtion adopted by the
consensus to La rea
tutlon adorted by the

¢ which had recommended

$3.  He anncounced that the delegations of Belivia, Dotewara, Democrati Yemen and
the Higer had become svonsors of tle draft resolution.



LLY (United Kincdom) pointed out thot the "Jecisions” of the lnited
“ations Conference on Dese tlflcatlon referred to in paragraphs 1 andg 2 had in
fact been recommendations.

. Mr. SIeoDIC (Afghanistan) said thot the sponsors agreed to replace all
references to decisions in those paragraphs by references to recommendations.

36,  Lr. RUCKTESCH.LL, (Federal Republic of CGermany) drew the Committee’s attention
to the fact that the ~additional international and bilateral assistance’ referred
to in paragraph 2 was not in fact available.

57.  wr. BROW (Australia) said that his delegation, among others, had sugrested
changes to draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.37 which had not been taken into account in
the revised version. For instance, they had raised objections to paragraph 2 of
the draft resolution because in proposing additional assistance it went further
than the reccmmendations of the Tmited ilations Conference on Degertification.
Accordingly, his delegation expressed its reservations with regard to the word
“additional’.

56, The CHAI LA said that, if he heard no objections, he would take it that the

Committee decided to approve draft resolution A/C.2/32/L.37/Rev.l, as orally
revised, without a vote.

59, It was so decided.

60, Mr., SETFMAR (United States of America) said that his delegation wished to
make it clear that it accepted the reference, in the third preambular paragraph of
the draft resolution, to the principle of the permanent sovereignty of States over
their natural resources only in so far az the application of that principle was
compatible with international law.

61. Hr. YEVDOKEYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that his delegation
fully suvported thz draft resolution, as it was his country's voisition of
nrinciple that assistance to the developing countries, particularly the least
developed countries, should be increased. On the recommendations of the United
Hations Conference on Desertification referred “o in paragraph 2, his delegation's
position was ldentical with that expressed by the Boviet Union at the Conference
itself.

a2, dr. DI BEIR (Belgium), speaking on behalf of the member States of the European
Teonomic Coumunlty, stressed that the principle of permanent sovereignty of States
over their natural resources, referred to in the third preawmbular varagraph, had
to be applied in striet conformity with international law.

The meeting rose at 1 n.m.






